ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2005
1:13 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lesil MGQuire, Chair
Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representati ve John Coghil |
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Pete Kott
Representative Les Gara
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representative David CGuttenberg
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s

COWMW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW'S): THERAPEUTI C COURTS, ALASKA COURT SYSTEM & PARTNERS
FOR PROGRESS

- HEARD

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 56(JUD)

"An Act relating to crimnal l|aw and procedure, crim nal
sentences, and probation and parole; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 88

"An Act relating to certain weapons offenses involving mnors;
to aggravating factors in sentencing for <certain offenses
commtted against a school enployee; and providing for an
effective date.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 2/ 4/ 05

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2005



HOUSE BI LL NO. 41

"An Act relating to mninmum periods of inprisonment for the
crinme of assault in the fourth degree conmtted against an
enpl oyee of an elenentary, junior high, or secondary school who
was engaged in the performance of school duties at the tinme of
the assault.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 2/ 4/ 05
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 56

SHORT TITLE: CRI' M NAL LAW PROCEDURE/ SENTENCI NG
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) THERRI AULT

01/ 14/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 14/ 05 (S) JUD, FIN

01/ 18/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 18/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 18/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 19/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 19/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 19/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 20/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

01/ 20/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB 56(JUD) Qut of Committee
01/ 20/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 21/ 05 (S) JUD RPT CS 3DP 1INR SAME TITLE
01/ 21/ 05 (S) LETTER OF | NTENT W TH JUD REPORT
01/ 21/ 05 (S) DP: SEEKI NS, HUGG NS, THERRI AULT
01/ 21/ 05 (S) NR. FRENCH

01/ 21/ 05 (S) FI N REFERRAL WAl VED

01/ 26/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

01/ 26/ 05 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 56( JUD)

01/ 28/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 05 (H JUD, FIN

01/ 28/ 05 (H) LETTER OF | NTENT

01/ 31/ 05 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 31/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 31/ 05 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 02/ 05 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER
ROBYN JOHNSQN, Therapeutic Courts Coordi nator

Al aska Court System (ACS)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 2, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted with the overview of therapeutic
courts.

JANET McCABE, Chair

Partners for Progress, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted with the overview of therapeutic
courts.

JAMES N. WANAMAKER, Director

Al aska Center for Therapeutic Justice

Partners for Progress, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted with the overview of therapeutic
courts.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR LESIL MGJURE called the House Judiciary Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:13:10 PM Represent ati ves
Anderson, Coghill, Kott, and McGQuire were present at the call to
order. Representati ves G uenberg, Dahlstrom and Gara arrived
as the neeting was in progress. Representati ves GQuttenberg,

Berkowitz, and Sanuels were al so in attendance.

OVERVI EW( S)

THERAPEUTI C COURTS ALASKA COURT SYSTEM & PARTNERS FOR PROGRESS

1:14: 29 PM

CHAI R McGUI RE announced that the first order of business would
be the overview of therapeutic courts.

ROBYN JOHNSON, Therapeutic Courts Coordinator, Alaska Court
System (ACS), introduced Don Smith, admnistrator for the
Hi ghway Safety Ofice, Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities (DOT&PF), and Wendy Ham | ton, project manager for the
pl anned Juneau Wellness Court, which was funded by the H ghway
Safety Ofice.

1:16:19 PM
JANET MCABE, Chair, Partners for Progress, noted that Judge
James Wananaker recently retired from the court system and is

now director of the Alaska Center for Therapeutic Justice, which
is an arm of Partners for Progress. She said that there are

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2005



three main purposes for this overview to explain how and why
t herapeutic courts are effective; to show how therapeutic courts
protect the public; and to request that the legislature work
with the admnistration to strengthen the therapeutic court
system Ms. MCabe said she is also pronoting proposed
recommendations to be included as part of a conprehensive
strategy to address al coholismand addiction.

Ms. MCabe stated that in the 1980s, courts started creating
mandatory penalties for crinmes related to drug and al cohol
addi cti on. She said the increased penalties were effective in
reducing crime anong social drinkers, but had no affect on
strongly addicted offenders, so sone judges started to | ook for
a better way. The first therapeutic court started in Florida in
1989, and now there are over 1621 such courts nation-w de. She
conpared these courts to the "wellness court” started by Judge
Wananmaker in Anchorage. She opined that it is fortunate that
the Al aska legislature is supportive. She then relayed that
Anchorage nunicipal prosecutor, John MConnaughy, has said that
the need for these courts is obvious, and that there is a
certain population out there that clearly does not respond to
the traditional nodel of the crimnal justice system and that
offenders wth nultiple driving under the influence (DU)
arrests do not respond to the increasing punishment that they
get. Mst of these offenders are highly addicted, she said, and
the traditional nodel required a rehabilitation program after
sentencing, but 50 percent of this group never even "sign up,”
and those that do generally do not conplete the program

M5. MCABE stressed that protecting the public is primry.
Serious repeat alcoholics always conme out of jail, "and once
they get out they are an extrenme danger to the public - a car in
their hands is a deadly instrunent,” she warned.

1:24:55 PM

JAMES N. WANAMAKER, Director, Alaska Center for Therapeutic
Justice, Partners for Progress, Inc., noted that he's a recently
retired judge from Anchorage's Third Judicial District. The
main goal of Partners for Progress is to pronpte therapeutic
courts, he stated. The group supports a forthcomng bill by
Representati ve Rokeberg which wll extend the wellness court
nmet hod. He expressed appreciation for previous |egislation
setting up a system for wellness courts, specifically the one in
Anchor age.

1: 28: 41 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2005



MR. WANAMAKER showed the committee a chart indicating that of
people going through the traditional court system only 33
percent did not repeat their crine. In well ness court cases of
2001 and 2002, 75 percent of offenders remain free of crine, and
for 2003, 100 percent of the offenders have renmined free of
repeat crine to date. These are outstanding statistics, he
said. The therapeutic court nodel is effective because it gets
the offender to treatnent immediately. Treatnent invol ves
medi cation and noral recognition therapy. He said that in the
traditional system all "the players” are working separately,
and with the new system everyone is at the sanme table trying to
rid the of fender of the addiction.

1: 33: 18 PM

MR. WANAMAKER stated that defendants are "pretty nuch ordinary
folks" with an addiction who are offered an opportunity to
rebuild their lives. There are |long-term econom ¢ advantages to
the state, he said, and it is an excellent programto rid people
of addictions thereby protecting the public from intoxicated
drivers. He said that the court system agrees and has hired a
t herapeutic courts coordinator. In Alaska, there are currently
seven of these courts, he said, and four nore are being created.
M . Wananaker said he wants the executive branch to provide nore
support for the new system noting that there have been probl ens
with the Department of Corrections. M. Wnanaker said that the
H ghway Traffic Safety office has invested $800,000 for
therapeutic courts, which would benefit from increased support
at the admnistration |evel.

1: 38: 31 PM

M5. JOHNSON said the first therapeutic courts were drug courts,
and they now have additional titles, such as problem solving
courts, DU courts, wellness courts, and specialty courts.
Nationally they are called drug courts. "The main drug of
choice for Al askans is alcohol,"” she said, so alcohol addiction
is Alaska's focus. Also, there is a "nmental health" court and a
"fam |y dependency court." She relayed that Judge Stephanie
Rhoades of Al aska started one of the first nental health courts
in the country, and it is used as a nodel for other states,
adding that Al aska's Judge Janmes Winanaker helped create the
wel | ness court. There is a four-year study on that nodel to
determine its transferability to the rest of the nation. Ms.
Johnson noted that funding sources are varied. The | egislature
has funded several of the courts, she added, and the Al aska

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 2, 2005



Mental Health Trust Authority (AMHTA) is very supportive of the
mental health courts. Ms. Johnson pointed out that therapeutic
courts are not feasible in all Al askan conmunities, so there is
an effort to train judges to integrate sone of the principles of
therapeutic justice into their practice.

1: 44: 02 PM

M5. JOHNSON quoted a statenment by President Bush in support of
drug courts [original punctuation provided by Ms. Johnson]:

Drug courts are an effective and cost efficient way to
hel p non-violent drug offenders conmt to a rigorous
drug treatnent program in lieu of prison. By
| everaging the coercive power of the crimnal justice
system drug courts can alter the behavior of non-
vi ol ent, | ow | evel drug of f ender s t hr ough a
conbi nation of judicial supervision, case nanagenent,
mandatory drug testing, and treatnent to ensure
abstinence fromdrugs, and escal ati ng sancti ons.

CHAI R MCGUI RE t hanked the speakers for their presentation.

SB 56 - CRI M NAL LAW PROCEDURE/ SENTENCI NG

1:45: 31 PM

CHAI R McGUI RE announced that the final order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 56(JUD), "An Act relating to crim nal
| aw and procedure, crimnal sentences, and probation and parole
and providing for an effective date.” [CSSB 56(JUD) had been
anmended tw ce on 1/31/05.]

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON noved to report CSSB 56(JUD), as
anmended, out of commttee wth individual recommendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he still had questions about the
bill.

The conmittee took an at-ease from1:46 p.m to 1:49 p. m
1:49: 51 PM
CHAIR MGURE noted that at the bill's prior heari ng,

Representative Gara had nade a notion to adopt Amendnent 3 but,
because of time constraints that day, had withdrawn it.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2005



1: 50: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA again nmade a notion to adopt Anmendnent 3,
| abel ed 24-LS0308\L.1, Luckhaupt, 1/28/05, which read:

Page 4, lines 10 - 17:
Delete all material.

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 24, |line 4:
Delete "Sections 1, 4, 6, 26, and 29 - 31"
| nsert "Sections 1, 4, 6, 25, and 28 - 30"

Page 24, lines 5 - 6:
Delete "Sections 2, 3, 5, 7 - 25, and 27 - 28"
| nsert "Sections 2, 3, 5, 7- 24, and 26 - 27"

Page 24, line 7:
Del ete "secs. 8 - 21"
| nsert "secs. 7 - 20"

CHAI R MGUI RE obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
1:50: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that a judge can increases a sentence
based on the "Chaney criteria” [statutory guidelines based on
the 1970 Al aska Suprene Court case, Chaney v. State]. Wth
Amendnent 3, Representative Gara said, judges are required to
explain their sentencing decisions, and it gives defendants the
right to file an appeal if they think their sentences are too
| ong. He said that if the legislature takes out the right to
appeal, "this bill is going be here next vyear." He said he
thinks it is a constitutional issue.

1: 53: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to lines 11-13 on page 4 and
said that it says that a sentence reviewed by an appellate court
may not be reversed as excessive, adding that he believes this
does not take away the right to appeal. It limts the court's
discretion to render a decision, which therefore violates
Article 1V, Section 2, of the Al aska State Constitution, which
makes the supreme court the highest court in the |and. One
cannot have the judicial power of the state in a court when it

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2005



is denied the right to reverse a sentence as excessive. That is
a limtation on the judicial power of the state, Representative
G uenberg stated. He also said it is contrary to Rule 520(c) of
the Al aska Rules of Appellate Procedure, which gives the courts
full power to reverse a decision. He said, therefore, that he
supports anmendnent 3.

1:55: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  COGHI LL sai d t he constitution says t he
jurisdiction of the courts should be prescribed by law, and he
t hi nks, "one of the things that we've done in the legislature is
give sentence prescription, and if you want to call that a
limtation on the court, that certainly is; this is just an
extension of that prescription.” He said he thinks the |anguage
in the bill wouldn't be challengeable constitutionally, so
Representative Coghill said he will vote agai nst Arendnment 3.

CHAIR MGU RE announced that the commttee's packet contains
argunents for and against Amendnent 3, and noted that
Legislative Legal and Research Services reported that other
states that have a simlar prohibition against appeals based on
excessi veness have been uphel d. Chair MQuire said there are
good argunents on both sides, and predicted that the debate wll
conti nue. She said she will oppose the anmendnent because she
thinks an inportant prerogative of the legislature is to be able
to set mandatory mninum sentences for certain crinmnes. She
added that she would prefer to have aggravators in place, but
separate trials are costly, and it is necessary to draw the |ine
somewhere. She said there are sone | awrakers who would like to
sinply raise the mninum sentence, but she said she feels nore
confortable with giving the courts a range. If the bill allows
for appeals based on excessiveness, there wll be an appeal
"every single tine."

2:00:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded to Representative Coghill's
points and said that even if Representative Coghill were
correct, it would only apply to the court of appeals and not to
the supreme court. Representative G uenberg added that he
| ooked at the two states where Chair McQuire said a simlar |aw
was upheld, and he countered that those laws are very different
from what Al aska is doing. He said that the Washington statute
limts the defendant's ability to file an appeal, and the Kansas
statute limts the court's jurisdiction in the |egal sense.
That is "not at all what this bill does; this bill limts the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2005



court's power to issue a judgnent of reversal, and that's
different froma jurisdictional issue,” he said.

2:02: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he does not want to argue about
constitutionality because the conmttee cannot determ ne that,
and he wants to point out that he thinks determning a range is
accept abl e. Amendnent 3 does not alter that; instead it
requires judges to explain to the public what they did and why,
he said. Representative Gara said he doesn't always have
conplete trust in judges, and the whole point of the court of
appeals is to keep the |aw consistent. Maki ng a judge defend
his or her decisions nmakes the system nore credible.

2:05:01 PM

CHAIR MG@UIRE said she thinks there are two issues in
Representative Gara's anendnent, and she recommends that he
consider bifurcating it if it fails. She said she is much nore
synpat hetic to his requirenent of findings.

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON recapped Chair MQuire's comments, and
asked Representative Gara to respond.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said Anendnent 3 |eaves the |law the same as
it is today, and the people who have the right to appeal today
will have that right tonorrow. He said he agrees that there is
abuse of the appeal process, but people wth good appeals as
wel | as bad appeals file. He said that by elimnating the right

to appeal, both groups of people will be punished, and it would
protect all judges regardless of whether they are doing a good
j ob. "By taking away the right to appeal from everybody, you

are going to uphold sentences that shouldn't have been issued,"
he sai d.

2:07:50 PM

CHAIR MGU RE responded that under the current system a
def endant knows that if sentencing goes above the presunptive
because of an aggravating factor, the likelihood of appeal is
| ess. The reason for pairing the appeal exclusion with the
range is the "human tendency to say 'if there's a range of four
to seven, and | get anything nore than four, |I'm nmad about it."'"
She remarked that all of Representative @Gra's argunents
standi ng al one make sense, but it is the package that causes her
concern. She said that Section 7, puts "downward pressure,” on

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 2, 2005



the sentencing, and she reiterated her belief that anyone who

gets nore years than the bottom of the range wll want to
appeal .
2:09:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said those were good points. However, going
back to the prenmise of the bill, he remarked, the Departnent of
Law (DOL) said it did not want to change the average sentences
in the state, but that it wanted to abide by the new
constitutional ruling. Representative Gara said he believes his

anendnent would do that - keep Al aska's sentencing guidelines as
simlar to current guidelines as allowed. He opined that this
bill changes sentencing for every crinme, and if the legislature

wants to do that, it should consider each crine individually.
2:10: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG spoke on incarceration costs, and
suggested that it would save the state noney when an appeal is
won. He added that judges nake "occasional m stakes,"” sentence
appeal s are inexpensive, and a few successful appeals can "save
the state a significant anmount of noney."

The conmittee took an at-ease from2:12 p.m to 2:14 p. m

[ SB 56, as previously amended, was held over with the notion to
adopt Amendnent 3 | eft pending.]

ADJ QURNIVENT
2:14: 33 PM

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conm ttee neeting was adjourned at 2:14 p.m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2005



